

Welcome to RMEx Version 5.3. This document is intended to be used by your management to understand the changes that have been added to RMEx. Please read the documentation carefully prior to installing the new version!

Table of Contents

System Controls	2
Client Inquiry Search Function	4
Password Reset Process	4
Smart Codes	9
Outbound Text Messaging for collections	10
Options for Payment Distribution	12
Payment Arrangements	14
Statute of Limitations	16
Extended multiple co-signer screens	18
Other changes	19

System Controls

We have added some additional options to the System Parameters in the system controls.

• Ability to hide links: In some cases, you may have a consumer with a very large number of links that have already been closed or replaced, and this can make it difficult and time-consuming for agents to search for and find the open accounts. We have added a flag to the System Parameters option to give your agents the ability to "hide" closed links from the (linked accounts) F5 window. The options allowed are Y and C. The Y-option will hide inactive closes and close code 1 (PIF's) that have a zero balance. Option C will hide any account with a close code. If the switch is on, you can toggle between hiding and displaying accounts, by using the special icon on the graphical interface.

RMEx	QUANTRAX CORPORATION INC.	Chat
>>		EXIT
		4
	System Parameters (Page 2)	
Ad	id standard note immediately if no note by user (Y)	
87	/pass minimum for proportionate payment distribution (Y)	Y .
Cr	reate processing types for "Cell" and "Other phones only" (Y)	
Ge	et missing area codes using state and prefix (Y)	
Ru	in linking during the day (Y)	Y
Ru	in account processing in 3,4 or 5 parts (Enter 1,2 or 3)	(Check with
Pr	rimary balance search for collectors (N=No)	Quantrax)
Hi	ide closed accounts on linked accounts summary (Y,C)	¥.
FI	rom account details, get cell phones from links (Y)	■
In	a nightly update primary with cell phones from links (Y)	
Ad	id cosigners to other phones (Y)	
De	escription code to add when debtor closed and cosigner open	
De	esc.Code for permission to bypass maximum calls compliance	
In	clude non-reportable payments in commission (some options)	
Ma	ask phone numbers after maximum calls (Y)	
Li	imit info. in account processing when access not allowed (Y)	
Ac	ccess to single cosigner information (N=No)	
Mu	iltiple collector access to same account (N=No)	
Ma	ask consumer numbers for Description Code	22
De	o not allow phones to be added with Description Code	23
F7-	Exit ENTER-More information	

The linked accounts summary will only display open accounts since the system parameter is set to 'C'. In the example below, one account will be hidden.

	ACCOUNT SUMMARY Flored						
	Placed	Client Name	Col-Wkr	Acct#	Balance\$	Lst.Pmt.	Status
1 0	1/09/18	ABC BICYCLE	COL1-COL1	001947076	106.10		*
2 0	1/09/18	ABC BICYCLE	COL1-COL1	001947077	206.00		
3 0	1/10/18	ABC BICYCLE	COL1-COL1	001947078	53.42		DISPUTE
4							
5							
6							
7							
8							
Sel	ect a line 🗌 Cha	ange Primary to 🗌 Move	Notes (Y)				Page 1 of 1
F	1/F13-First/Last	F2/F14-Ord F6-Lk+	F9-Link F15-S	um F17-Prt F21-Pri	F24-Alt.Fmt F7-Exit		

Use 'the eye' icon to toggle between hiding and displaying all the accounts.

 Metro2 File- Long Names: The current account file limits a customer's first and last name to 15 characters. When reporting to credit bureaus, it is important to use the customer's FULL name. Quantrax has created a "Long Name" file to store these names (SCACTRNFG). The long name can be loaded through I-load. By selecting this new option, the Metro 2 file will automatically use the names from the Long Name file rather than the Account file.

The option to use the long names has been added to the 4th screen of System Parameters. The name can be viewed and updated (by users who are NOT defined as collectors) from the "Additional account information" option off the Tab-Q selections.

• **Payment Wash:** In some instances, your client may not want to see transactions where a positive and negative entry did not change the balance on the account. For example, if a customer pays \$25.00 on 1/1/18 and that check is returned on 1/03/18 (same statement reporting period), there may be no need to report either transaction to the client as it resulted in a "wash". By selecting this option, these transactions will be omitted from the remittance statements, provided both transactions have not been reported. The option is activated within "Set up automatic payment "Wash" for reversals", from within the Payment/Adjustment codes system control file.

RMEX QUANTRAX CORPORATION INC.	Chat
	EXIT
Payment/Adjustment_Codes	
Select one of the following options -	
1. Payment codes	
2. Adjustment codes	
3. Rules for consumer payment application requests	
4. Set up automatic payment "Wash" for reversals	
Option	
F7-Cancel Press ENTER to Continue	4

Client Inquiry Search Function

We have added a search by Client E-mail address to the available search options from the Client Inquiry.

RMEx	QUANTRAX CORPORATION INC.		Chat
		Client Search	EXIT
	Enter part of search na or Street address or Phone number or Group number or Contact series client of or Contact series or Smart Code Series or Email Address	20de]
F	I-New selection F7-Exit		4

Password Reset Process

We have all been there; we have disabled ourselves and/or forgotten our passwords! When this happens, we have to hope that someone is there to enable us or reset us! We have added a feature that will allow the agents to reset their own passwords by answering a series of security questions that they will setup. This feature will help reduce agent down time and support overheads, while also increasing your management team's ability to focus on security.

This option is only available on the GUI users. A user will be required to set up their security questions if they do not exist. There is an option to view and change the responses to the security questions. If a user forgets their password, or it is disabled, they will sign on with the User ID "iforgot". The password is the same as the User ID. They will be prompted for their User ID, and they will be asked to respond to the security questions. If the answers are correct, the user will be asked to enter and confirm a new password. If there are no errors, the password is changed. The user is signed off and can sign in with the new password.

Update your security questions

For a user to have the ability to reset their password, they will need to answer the security questions and save them in the system. The option is called 'Set up or review security questions' and this option can be found under the tree menu just above the signoff option.

Following is the screen where you would setup your answers to the security questions:

RMEx	QUANTRAX CORPORATION INC.	Chat
	EXIT	
	SECURITY OUESTIONS	
	Minimum of two questions must be answered	
	Q1. What is your employee number?	
	Q2. What is the last four digits of your SSN?	
	Q3. What is your mother's first name?	
	Q4. What is your first pet's name?	
	Q5. What is your favorite food?	
		<
	F7-Exit F12-Update	

NOTE: The user needs to answer a minimum of two questions.

Once the user has saved the details they will be now eligible to change their password in the system.

How to reset your password

To reset their password, a user will need to login to the system using the following credentials. User name: IFORGOT

Password: IFORGOT

Once you have logged in, you will be presented with the following screen

RMEx	QUANTRAX CORPORATION INC.			
	E	ASSWORD RESET	EXIT	ł
	PLEASE EI	NTER YOUR USER NAME		
F7-Exit				

On the above screen, enter your RMEx User ID which you use to log into the system.

After entering the user name,

If you have not setup your security question, you will not be able to proceed further, and will be presented with the screen to contact your manager \rightarrow



If you have setup the security questions the system will display a screen with the questions that you have setup. For example, if you have answered only three questions out of five, the system will present only the three questions you answered in the security questions setup.

RMEx	QUANTRAX CORPORATION INC.	
		EXIT
	PASSWORD RESET	
		-
Pleas	e answer at least two questions to reset your password	
01.	WHAT IS YOUR EMPLOYER NUMBER?	
Q2.	WHAT IS YOUR MOTHER'S FIRST NAME?	_
03.	WHAT IS YOUR FIRST PET'S NAME?	
23.		-
F7-Fxi	Enter to proceed	

NOTE: The user needs to answer at least two questions correctly to proceed. A user will be given a maximum of three attempts to provide the correct answers.

Once you have entered the correct answers you will be presented with a screen to type in your new password and you will then be asked to re-enter your new password.

PLEASE ENTER YOUR PASSWORD	PLEASE RE-ENTER YOUR PASSWORD

If the re-entered password matches the new password, your password will be reset and the user will be presented with the following screen.



Press ENTER from the above screen and you will be signed off automatically. To log into the system, use your new password.

Smart Codes

Ability to delete a Payment Arrangement with a Smart Code

We have added a feature to delete a payment arrangement. Presently, there is an option to start a payment arrangement. This option starts a "Standard payment arrangement". The same field (Option "D") can now be used to delete an existing payment arrangement, where an arrangement could be a linear arrangement, non-linear arrangement, credit card series or direct/post-dated checks. The system control option has been changed to "Start or delete P/Arr (Y,R,D,S)". "D" and "S" are new options.

Notes will be added when an arrangement is deleted.

	RMEX QUANTRAX CORPORATION INC.
	EXIT
P 1 P 2 P 3	->Go to page <u>Smart Codes</u> pg/8 Smart Code 001 Override Type (A, P, C, N, O) P Description PROMISE TO PAY
P4	Report description
P 6	
P 7 P 8 P 9	Clear POE (P,W,B) Clear phones (H,W,C,B,O,A) H TAB+ (Y) Transfer to Own/Wrk/Spl if Can only be applied by O, W, S, A worked by another user (O,W,S)
	Immediate transfer to worker code A=Broken promises
	Add account to queues User ID <u>OR</u> D=Dated follow-up
	Worker code (Y) G=New business
	Processing type> J=Work phones
	QCat code M=Home phones only
	Time frame (AMP) P=Hot accounts
	Change queues if worker is changed (Y) C=Cell X=Other phones
	Start or delete P/Arr (Y,R,D,S) with first payment in days (Blank=30 days)
	Run linking for new account (Y) Stop audit notes (Y) Apply S/C (override) after days OR months OR from placement Remove future S/Code (override) Remove all future S/Codes (Y)

The option "R" has existed for a while but was not documented. This option will also start a payment arrangement but will check for recent payments. If there is a payment within the last month and the payment amount is at least the minimum installment amount, we will use that amount instead of the amount from the standard rules.

The option "S" will delete a "Settlement" that has been set up. Notes will be added when a settlement is deleted.

Smart code Search Functionality: A new feature has been added to the Smart Code search option (F3), allowing you to search for a smart code based on search words within the description, special note and note lines of the smart codes.

RMI	Ex (QUANTRAX CORP	SATION INC.		Chat
			Smart Code Search Category	EXIT	
			Search text		
	П	001	PROMISE TO PAY		-
	Ō	002	TEMP		
		003	CLEAR LETTERS PENDING		
		004	RETURN TO OWNER		
		005	REMOVE HOME PHONE		
		006	PROMISE PIF		
		007	REASSIGNING		
		008	WORKER CODE TEST2		-
		009	TEST CLOSE ALL COSIGNER		
		010	UCS-REASSIGN TEST		
		011	TEST F/UP DATE		
		012	LINK ATTY ? LOGIC		
		013	CBCIN ? LOGIC		
		014	DISABLE COS #		
		015	TESTING COURT CODE		
		016	MOVE TO DMB		
		017	TEST SCREEN CODE		
		018	TEST ANSWERING MACHINE		
		019	DATA EXTRAC SC TEST		4
		020	POE-WILD CARD TEST		
	F1-N	ew Selection	F7-Exit F9-Category search ROLL KEYS Active		•

Outbound Text Messaging for collections

Our first attempt at outbound text messaging was for payment arrangement reminders. We allow you to store cell phone numbers. You have a designated field for a cell phone with permission (the cell phone field on the account detail screen). The system will prompt you to ask for consent when you obtain a cell phone number or have a RPC. You can ask for permission to send text messages, send a message from an agent screen and have the consumer text a code back to you. All this is documented. And what do you do with this powerful new communication channel you just created? You have permission to use the cell phone for communications – Why not use it for collections?

The concept is simple. We already have a contact series, a series of letters and/or phone calls. The "letter" can be conventional mail or an email. Now, the letter can be a text message.

You need to set the following flags for this feature to work.

1. In the Letter System Control file, define the text of the 'texting letter' using the field 'Text message language'. Letter needs to be set up to 'Allow as a selected letter'.

You can make use of the following merge codes to populate some of the fields defined in the text message.

NOTE – Make sure these Merge codes are preceded by '<'.

< F1 – First name

< F2 – First name at # (# is the cell phone number)

- < N1 First and last name
- < N2 First and last name at #
- < A1 Company and case number

<A50 is a valid merge code that can be used for 'Client account number'.

Consumers can reply back to a text with STOP, to opt out from receiving any text messages.

An example is shown below.

RMEX QUANTBAX CORPORATION INC.	Chat
	EXIT
Letter or document codes	4
Company name Quantrax Collection Enterprises Letter/document CH Description TEST SENDING TEXT	
Stored document (Y) Document name contains text Both sid Front overlay Front overlay library Back overlay Back overlay library	ies (Y)
Word template code	
Subject line for secure email Secure email Cover ID	
Secure email Letterhead Code 1 Secure email Letterhead Cod	de 2
We are contacting <f2 a="" assigned="" been="" discuss="" has="" o<="" our="" product="" th="" that="" to=""><th>office.</th></f2>	office.
please call quantrax Corporation to discuss this important matter, quote c. <a50. opt="" out.<="" stop="" text="" th="" to=""><td>Tile n</td></a50.>	Tile n
F1-New Selection F3-Search F7-Exit F11-Print sample format	

- 2. Send with email options (1,2,3)
 - 1 Text only
 - 2 Text and Email
 - 3 Email only
- 3. Send to all cells (Y)
 - If there is a Y in the above field, any cell phone related to the consumer will get the same text. (For all phone codes that are set up as cell numbers)
 - If there is no Y, the text will be sent ONLY to the cell number on the Account Detail Screen (if there is a cell phone number).

You can request the text message in following ways.

- As a Selected letter through a smart code (will get created during the nightly)
- As an On-demand letter Tab-Q 7 which is "Print a letter" (recommended option for testing)
- Through a contact series

There is a new option on the system parameters (Page 4) called "Collection texts are attempts/contacts (A/C)." We anticipate that text messaging will soon be a viable and recognized communication channel, but that collection texts (as opposed to "customer service texts" such as payment reminders) may need to be considered attempts or contacts. As always, we have anticipated the future and given you the option to deal with a likely scenario.

Please remember that you need RMEx's Mobile Suite for text messaging.

Options for Payment Distribution

When a consumer has several accounts placed with an agency, the agency or consumer may wish to allocate certain amounts to specific accounts or have some accounts (e.g. a specific doctor) paid off before others. In the past, agents would take the information and notate the primary account with the instructions. A special description code would be added to "warn payment entry". The payment poster would be alerted and would divide and post the payments on each individual account, as specified in the notes. This was a manual process, and we have always looked for a more automated process.

In this version, we have addressed this operational challenge with two options.

• If the consumer is making a payment and requests that *specific amounts are applied to selected accounts,* we will accomplish this by having the agent set up amounts at the account level. The amount to be applied to each account will be entered as a promise amount on each of the accounts (a promise date and amount is required). When a payment is processed, regardless of the distribution method applicable, the payment will be distributed based on the promise amounts on the individual accounts.

This option requires some additional set up in the system controls. On the second system control menu, the option "Payment/Adjustment codes" has an option "Rules for consumer payment application requests". There are two option within this -

"Use promise amount for payments (Y)" and "Description code on primary account".

If you will be using promise amounts to indicate that specific amounts are applied to individual accounts, place a "Y" in "Use promise amount for payments". Simply get the promise date and amount on each account using a smart code (or event that points to a smart code). In order to trigger this special logic on a group of accounts, *make sure a special description code defined in "Description code on primary account" gets on the primary account.* This can be accomplished though everts or smart codes. When payments are entered against the primary, the linked accounts screen *will be automatically populated with the amounts on the promise amounts on the links.* The payment entry staff must be trained to understand this.

Can you quickly review the accounts that have amounts defined for payment allocation? There is a column on the linked accounts (F5) screen (within account inquiry) called "Placed". This is accessed from the function key "Alternate format". When special amounts are specified, this column will show the amount to be allocated (promise amount) instead of the placement date.

As long as no balance type is specified, this option will work for batch payments processed too (e.g. client sends a file of directs).

• The user can also define the order in which a consumer wishes payments to be applied across the linked accounts.

For example, consider a case where the consumer wishes to pay off the account with a balance of \$53.42 followed by the \$ 106.10 account.



Select F24 and you will be presented with a screen on which you can define the order in which

the consumer requests the payments to be applied.

The new field with a title of "\$" is used to set up the priority for payment distribution, across the linked account, with 1 being the first account(s) to receive money. You can put the same priority on multiple accounts or leave the option blank, which makes that the lowest priority.

	INILA GOAVINAS CONPO		Home Phone				onat	
Company	99 Acct # 001947076		Work Dhone			EVENTS	S	
Client Number	000100 ABC BICYCLE	INQUIRY	Coll Phone			EXIT	<u> </u>	
Owner	COL1 Worker COL1 Split	000 A	Cell Priorie					
Client .Acct #	335221		Promise Amount	20.00				
Guarantor	0 LINKING EMIL		Amount placed	100.00				
Extra Address			Balance	106.10				
Street Address	444 ABC ROAD		Total balance	365.52				
City/State/Zip	BETHESDA 2552	21021	No. Of Accts	3				
		ACCOUNT SUMMAR	/			F10-R	0-Refresh	
Last Tr	Debtor Name	Placed\$	Balance\$	Home Ph	Work Ph	Q/C	\$	
L 05/05/16	LINKING EMIL	100.00	106.10				2	
2 05/18/17	LINKING EMIL	200.00	206.00				3	
3 02/02/16	LINKING EMIL	50.00	53.42				1	
1								
5								
5								
7								

The rest of the payment process (e.g. payment entry) is similar to what was described for specific amounts being applied to individual accounts.

Payment Arrangements

The following changes have been made.

- Broken payment arrangements: Accounts will be analyzed in the nightly. If a check or credit card payment has been missed, the account will be presented in Follow-Up dates in account processing.
- Payment arrangement reminders with text messaging: With reminders, we will usually send a letter about 7 to 10 days before the due date, to adjust for holidays and weekends. That is not the case with text messages. Text messages go out as soon as they are released. You would want to send text messages closer to the due date, compared to mailed letters. We have added a text-message related option called "Test message delay days". This applies to reminders and allows for a distinction between printed letters and text messages that will get to their destination the same day. This option will be used for payment arrangements, post-dated check and credit card reminders. This applies to text messages and NOT to e-mails. It is our view that text

messaging will soon replace e-mails for reminders. (You do need our "Mobile suite" to send out text messages)



Ability to pause call recordings while obtaining sensitive information: We have added an option to the dialer system controls to let our clients decide if they wish to pause a call recording when agents are receiving sensitive payment information such as credit card or checking information. When the agent enters the Credit Card or Check screens, the system will check the setting to determine if the system requires to automatically pause the call recording until the agent leaves the screen, at which point the recording will resume.

Option 10 on the I-Tel system controls menu, allows the user to activate this feature.

RMEx	QUANTRAX CORPORATION	INC.			
				EXIT	
		Dialer Co	ntrol File		
Co	de I	Description	<mark>I-Tel Dialer</mark>	c	
Di	gits in extension		9		
Са	ll Recording on/all	Comp.(Y,N,b)		WITH PERMISSION Preview to cell (N=No)	
Co	de to add to non-lo	cal#		WITHOUT PERMISSION Preview to cell (N=No)	
Di	aler time zone (Sys urs behind GMT	stem time)	05	Predictive to cell (N=No)	
Ho	urs ahead of GMT		8	Call if N in Perm (N=No)	
Is	DST on? (Y)		Y	Keep phone code when permission is N (Y)	
07 07	erride dialer Messa erride Message queu	age Queue Ne library		Pause recording prior to finance process (Y)	
Sh In	ow inbound messages clude balance in me	s (Y,N,b) essage (Y,N,b)			
Sh	ow balance if over				
Us	e of 800 numbers fo	or time zone	(N=Omit) omit, bl	with other numbers, A=Always .ank=Always use)	
F1-	New Selection F4-R	emove Information	F7-Exit		

The payment interface will indicate whether this functionality is active or not.

	RMEX QUAN	TRAX CORPORATION INC.						Chat
Company # Client Number Owner Client Acct #	99 Acct # 001947076 000100 ABC BICYCLE COL1 WorkerCOL1 Split 335221	Get Primary	IEXT	Hor IQUIRY Wo 000 Cel A Oth	ne Phone (C) rk Phone (C) I Phone (C) ner Phone (C)		• •	EVENTS SCAN DOCS. PAYMENT INTERFACE EXIT
Guarantor	None 🔻 LINKING	EMIL	Amount Plac	ed	100.00		Smart Code	
Street Addre City/State/Zi Home Email	Credit card	payment		\$	Total Balance \$3 SIF Amount \$0.	5.52 Max Ir 00 Min In	nstallments 150 Istallment \$25.0	
Employer Social Securi Patient (L/F) X-Reference	Card Number		Card Holder	r's Name	LINKING EM	IL		•
Spouse (L/F) ACat Letters Pend	Exp Date(MM/YY)	Select	Extra addre	ess ss	444 ABC ROAD			Amount
	Amount	365.5	2 City/State/2	Zip	BETHES	2552	221	
			Sa	ave	Authorize	Refresh		
Close Code Date 07/09/18 1								
07/27/18 1 07/27/18 1 07/27/18 1	v 2.0.2					Recordi	ng muted Start	Over
08/1//18 1							0	Close

Statute of Limitations

We have had an option that will look at state rules and close accounts every night, based on the statute of limitations. A need has been identified to set up different rules, based on the type of client. Each state could have different rules for medical and financial accounts. We now allow you to set up rules by state and client classification. The existing option "Statute for closing

accounts", will give you access to the "State rules" and "Rules by State and Client Classification". To access the system controls for client classifications, there is function key, F10 from the first screen of the old, state option.

Here is the new option, by client classification.

	RMEX QUANTRAX CORPORATION INC.	Cha	t
>>	Statute for closing accounts - Client Classification	EXIT	
	Company name Quantrax Collection Enterprises State Client classification		
	F3-Search F7-Exit		

And here is what the old state option looked like. As we stated, the same options are available for states and client classifications within states. The client classification rules take priority over the state rules.

	RMEX QUANTRAX CORPORATION INC.	Chat
⋗⋗	EXIT	
	Statute for closing accounts	
	Company name Quantrax Collection Enterprises State (Blank=All) (blank must FIRST be set up in STATE system controls)	
	F3-Search F7-Exit F10-Client Classification options	

Extended multiple co-signer screens

The multiple co-signer window now supports up to 12 co-signers (it used to be 3). This is done with the future in mind. The functionality has not been added at this time.

The screen below shows how Cosigners 10 to 12 would be set up.

RMEX QUANTRAX CORPORATION INC.	Chat
EVI	INTS
PAYMENT INTER	FACE
E	ат
Multinla Co_Signare / Other reenonsible parties //	0-12)
CoSia10	
Ext.Add RM GC	
Address Acct Number 99-001947076	
C/S/Z Debtor LINKING EMIL	
Phone# SS#	
POE DOB	
Wph# Cph#	
Bank	
Ltrs-Y Cls.Code Date	
Lt.Sent Equal Resp.(Y) Score _	
Relationship Co-User/Signer(U/C)	
CoSig11 CoSig12	
Ext.Add RM GC Ext.Add RM	I GC
Address Address	
C/S/Z C/S/Z	
Phone# SS# Phone# SS#	
FOE DOB FOE DOB	
Rank Rank	
Ltrs-Y Cls.Code Date Ltrs-Y Cls.Code Date	
Lt.Sent Equal Resp. (Y) Score Lt.Sent Equal Resp. (Y) Score	e
Relationship Co-User/Signer(U/C) Relationship Co-User/Signer(U/C)	_
F7.Evit F12.I Ind F20.Del F24.Dun	

Other changes

The following changes have been made.

• 'Store long names (Y) under the system parameters will activate the functionality to use long names in RMEx.

	RMEX QUANTRAX CORPORATION INC.	Chat
⋗	EXIT	_
	<u>System Falameters</u> (Page 5)	
	Store long names (Y) Y	

• There is the ability to search by e-mail address. We are adding the design to include Cosigner E-mail addresses as well as the customer. The functionality will be provided in a later release.